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MCCORMICK RAMILY OF POINT-AU-PELEE ISLAND,

TO

HIS EXCELLENCY THE GOVERNOR GENERAL
N COUNCIL:

Praying, 1stly.—For the Waiver of the Judgment obtained against them,
under peculiar circumstances, on an Information for Intrusion, filed

against them at their own instance, in respect of their possession of
that Island ;
AND

2ndly.—For the issuing of Patents for the Confirmation of their Title to
their respective portions of the Island under the Will of the late
William McCormick, Esquire, who held the Island under an Indian
Lease, of 1st May, 1788, made to the late Thomas McKee, Esquire a
Chief and a half-breed, for 999 years, (renewable) :

TOGETHER WITH

A Synopsis of the several Affidavits and other documents referred to in and
accompanying, the Memorial.

Presented on 22nd August, 1865.




CONTENTS.

Memorial, - - - - - -
Synopsis of Memorial, - - - - -

“ ‘“ Affidavits and other documents accompanying Memorial,




emarial

To Ilis Excellency the Right Honorable Charles Stanley
Viscount Monck. Baron Moneh of Ballytrammon, in the
County of Wexford, Governor General, &e., &c., &e.,

IN COUNMOCIL.

The Memorial of Mazry McCormick, widow and relict of William McCormick, late
of the Island of Point-nu-Pelée, in Lake Erie, Esquire, deceased ; of David, William,
Thomas, Lucinda E., Percgrine, Arthur and Sarah Ann, the surviving sons and danghters
of the said late William McCormick, all being devisees in his last Will and Testament ;
and of Francis Burwell, Charlotte Louisa, Walter Herbert, William Charles and Malcolm
Talbot, the sons and daughters of John McCormick, late of the said Island, Esquire,
deceased, who died intestate, and who was also one of the sons and devisees in the
said Will of the said late William McCorrnick ;—

Humbly sheweth—

1. That on the first day of May, 1788, the Chicfs and Sachems of the Bands of the
Chippewa and Ottawa Nations of Indians, then owning and inhabiting the said Island,
executed, with all due solemnity, and delivered to Thomas McKee, who was a half-breed,
and a Chief, and then of the Parish of L’Assomption, in the then Province of Quebec, a
Lease of the said Island, for a term of nine hundred and ninety-nine years, which Lease
was duly attested by, as subscribing witnesses, James Allen, then of Detroit, in the
then Indian Territories, and Fran¢ois Baby, then of L’ Assomption aforesaid, and after-
wards of the Town of Windsor, in the County of Essex, Esquire, deccased, and who
represented, in Parliament, the said County for many years ; a true copy of which said
Lease, marked (A,) accompanies this Memorial.

2. That the said Thomas McKee, immediately after the execution and delivery of
the said Lease, entered into possession of the said lsland, thereunder, and continued in
such possession, by himself and his tenants, up to the time of hiz death, which occuried
in the month of March of the year 1815, when his only child, Alexander McKee, of
L’>Assomption, in the then District of Hesse, Esquire, deceased, inherited his interest
therein, the said Thomas McKee having died intestate.

3. That the said Lease was taken from the said Thomas McKec, with his baggage,
by the enemy, on the occasion of the retreat of the British forces after the batile of the
Thames, (in which he had participated) during the last war with the United States, the
said Lease having, however, heen first duly enrolled according to the French law,
prevailing in the then Province of Quebee, by William Montorton, ¥squire, as a Notary
Public, in a registry book, kept by him, as such Notary, on pages 293 and 294 thereof ;
the said book being one of a series of three old registry books which are more particularly
referred to and described in the affidavit of Jobn Stuart, accompanying this Memorial,
and marked (B). That the said Notarial Registry Book of the said William Monforton,
with the affidavits of one William Monforton, the grandson of the said Notary, and of
one Charles Labadie, and others, accompanying and further identifying the same, is
herewith exhibited.

That Your Excellency’s Memorialists respectfully submit that the said Registry
Book bears, on its face, ample evidence of its own anthenticity.

4. That it was not until the 19th May, 1790, upwards of two years after the execu-
tion of the said McKee Lease, that the territory, extending from Catfish Creek, in what
is now the County ol Elgin, to the Chenail Ecarté, in what is now the County of Kent—
opposite a portion of which territory the said island is situate—was ceded to the Crown by
the Indians, and that the Deed of such cession (the treaty for which appears, by the terms of
such Deed, to have been negotiated by Alexander McKee, Esquire, who was the father
of the said Thomas McKee), is enrolled in one of the others of the said three old registry
books ; that two of the said registry books, of which that last mentioned is one, appear
to have been deposited in the Registry Office of the then Western District of Upper
Canada, upon its establishment, where they still remain; whereas, that of the said
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William Monforton appears to have remained in his hands up to the time of his death,
and to have been subsequently in the keeping of his descendants until a very few years
since, when it was acquired by the said Charles Labadie, and by him handed over
to the said John Stuart, as mentioned in the said affidavits, annexed thereto.

That a true copy of the said Deed of Cession, as extracted from one of the said

other two registry boolks, is annexed to, and forms a part of the said affidavit of the said
John Stuart.

5. That none of the islands, lying ofl the coast so ceded, and of which the island in
question is one, arc included in the said Deed of Cession ; neither have the Indians,
either before, or since the date of the said Deed, ever pretended either to cede the said

last mentioned island 1o the Crown, to demand possession thereof, or to claim any right
thereto.

6. That the bands of Indians, who so owned and occupied the said island, and
whose Chiefs and Sachems executed the said Lease thereof, to the said Thomas McKee,
have become extinet.

7. That the said William McCormick, so early as the year 1815, removed to the
said island, as will appear by reference to the affidavit of Michael Fox, (accompanying
this Memorial, and marked (C,) ) occupying the same, as the tenant of the said Alexander
McKee, the younger, up to the year 1823, when he, the said Alexander McKee, by :

Deed of Bargain and Sale, duly registered in the Registry Office of the County of Essex,

conveyed to him, the said William McCormick, the whole of the said isiand, for a

valuable consideration, (a certified copy of the Memorial, of which said Deed as regis-

tered, accompanies this Memorial, and is marked ¢ D,”) and, from which latter period,

he, the said William McCormick, occupied the same as his own property, improving {, |

and building upon it, by himnself and his tenants, up to the time of his death, the 18th day | Ko d
of February, 1840, bringing up and establishing thereon a numerous family of eight 1

sons and three daughters, to whom he devised the same equally by his Will, and all of

whom, with the exception of those since deceased, have continued to reside upon and

improve ihe same up to this time.

8. That the said William McCormick, by his last Will and Testament, bearing
date the 20th July, 1839, also duly registered in the Registry Office of the said County
of Essex—after leaving 10 his wife a Life Estate in the ¢ Home Farm,” and two hundred
acres of woodland adjoining it for her own support ; charging three other farms, specified,
with the support and education of the younger branches of his family, during their
minority ; and leaving his sister Elizabeth a life interest in the “ Butler Farm,”—devised
to each of his eleven sons and daughters, a certain farm, (particularly designated) pro-
viding that each and every of whe—tenwef the said eleven, farms thus specifically devised,
should be made up to the complement of three hundred acres of tillable land.

And the said William McCormick further—after providing that one hundred acres
of land, on the island, not otherwise disposed of, should be reserved for the support of a
school on the said island, and that a certain place should be marked out for a village
plot, a church and a school-house—devised the residue of the island, the saw-mill, with
two acres around it, with all stone, cedar, timber, village plot, church and school lot,
and hunting and fishing privileges, equally among his said eleven children.

That the said William McCormick, by his said last Will and Testament, appointed,
as execuirix and executors thereof, his said wife and his said sons, Alexander, John,
David and William, of whom only the said Mary McCormick and the said David and
William are now surviving ; a certified copy of the Memorial of the said Will, as duly
registered, accompanies this Memorial, and is marked «“ E.”

9. That after the death of the said William McCormick, the devisees, under his
said Will, considering it advisable that the said island should be surveyed, and the
farms, so specifically devised to them respectively, mensured out and defined, consented
to the employment of a Provincial Surveyor for that purpose ; that the late Philobeth D.
Salter was, accordingly, employed therefor, and who, in the year 1847, made a survey
of the island, and whose original field notes and copy of map of such survey, accom-
pany this Memorial, and are marked respectively ¢ F ” and * G.”

10. That the said Alexander McCormick, who, as the eldest, had been allowed by
the other devisees to act as their agent, for the management of their interests in the
undivided portion of the said island, induced the said surveyor to set off the farms, so
specifically devised by the said Will, in such a manner as to suit his own individual
interests, and not in accordance with the terms of the said Will, and to which survey
none of the other devisees ever assented, excepting as to that of that portion of the said
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Island known as ¢ Middle Island,” the division thereof being in strict accordance with
the terms of the said Will, and also, as truly determining the area of the said island and
its marshes respectively.

t1. That the said [sland of * Point-au-Pelée,” though found, by the said survey, to
cover an area of eleven thousand six hundred and forty-nine acres, one rood and fuur
poles, contains upwards of five thousand four hundred acres of marsh, which is unavail-
able at all times and, in consequence of its low level, utterly irreclaimable ; that
upwards of two thousand acres of that portion, which is not such irreclaimable marsh,
can never be made available as tillable land, it being always overflowed at anything
} ke a high stage of water ; and further, there are at least five hundred acres of the
remaining four thousand three hundred acres on bed-rock—slightly covered with soil—
which is also unfit for purposes of tillage ; there, thus, being less than four thousand
acres of the whole area of the Island, available, al all times, as arable land.

12. That, in the year 1859, some of Your Excellency’s Memorialists, being anxious
to raise money, some by way of mortgage on, and others by sale of portions of, their res-
pective interests in the said 1sland, and having failed in such attempts in consequence of
the indisposition, on the part of the parties with whom they had negotiated for the
purpose, to purchase or make advances on real estate, for which no Patent had issued,
consulted their then legal adviser, John Prince, Esquire, as to the best mode of procuring
the confirmation of their titles by the Government ; that the said John Prince thereupon
suggested that the Government should be requested to bring an amicable suit against
one or more of them, in respect of their possession of the said island, he, the said John
Prince, advising them, that upon judgment being rendered in their favor, (as he was
confident it must be,) the Government would at once issue the necessary Patents to them,
confirming their titles ; that Your Excellency’s Memorialists, reposing full confidence
in the legal knowledge and ability of the said John Prince, were induced to assent to
such his suggestion.

That, accordingly, at the cxpress instance and request of the legal adviser of the
said devisees, the Toronto agent of Her Majesty’s Attorney General for Upper Canada,
filed, in the Court of Queen’s Bench, an Information for Intrusion, on the said island,
against Mary McCormick and William McCormick, two of Your Excellency’s
Memorialists ; which action resulted in a judgment, rendered in Easter Term of 1859,
in favor of the Crown, and on which said judgment no further action has been taken, by
or on behall of the Crown, than the collection of its costs therein, tfrom the defendants,
under a Writ of Execution ; that the said information, having been so filed, a speciul
case was agreed upon, by the Counsel on both sides, for submission {or the judgment of
the Court ; that in the statement of such special case, not only were some material facts
erroneously stated, but a particular one, which, as Your Memorialists are advised, was
most material and important to the defendants’ case——as in fact, constituting the basis
and ground-work of the McKee-McCormick title to the said island—was wholly omitted
and ignored, namely : the existence of the Registry of the said Lease from the Indians,
and that the holding, as well by the said devisees, as by those under whom they claimed,
was under the said Lease, and, which fact, had it been made to form a part of the said
special case, could not, as Your Memorialists are advised, have failed to satisfy the
Court on the very important point, as to which the learned Chief Justice, the late Sir
John Beverley Robinson, Baronet, in giving his judgment, admits, in the following
words, the Court to have been left wholly in the dark, viz : ¢ Some proof, [ think,
*¢ should be given that the possession had not been a mere continued one taken, in the
first instance, by a mere iniruder, not asserting title.”

Your Excellency’s Memorialists beg leave to append, for Your Excellency’s infor-
mation, the concluding paragraph of the judgment in question : * [ do not doubt, when
¢ I consider the position of this Island, on the southern frontier of Canada, that it must
¢ have been known to the Government, in fact, that McKee and McCormick, and his
¢ family, had held the long possession which is admitted ; if the Government acquiesced
“ in it from a knowledge that the Indians had, all along, intended ihe land to be theirs,
¢ and, for that, or any other reason, have forborne, for sixty years, to assert a claim,
¢ either on account of the Indians or for the Crown, that may be felt, perhaps, by the
¢ Government, to give a strong claim to the present occupants to be confirmed in their
“ title or, at least, to be left unmolested, as they have hitherto been ; but that is a
¢ consideration to be disposed of by the Government, and, i ¢s evident, I think, from
“ what is before us, that the defendants are not likely to be unjustly or harshly dealt
¢ with. As a Court of Justice we must be careful not to distort legal principles on
“ account of their operation in particular cases, for what we hold to be law in the pre-
‘¢ sent case, we should be bound to apply in others, unless there should be a difference in
“ the facts, such as would warrant a different decision. My opinion is, that the Crown,
“ upon what is stated in this case, is entitled to a verdict;” which said judgment is
reported in volume 18, of the Queen’s Bench Reports for Upper Canada, at page 131,
and also in the U. C. Law Journal for 1860, page 41.
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13. That, sometime after the rendering of the said judgment, the said Jobn Prince
apprised Your Excellency’s Memorialists that it was adverse to them, and they, after
having {or several months thereaftcr, endeavoured in vuin to get some satisfactory
explanation from the said John Prince, as to the grounds upon which the said judgment
had been so rendered, reiained the zbove named John Stuart, then a practising lawyer,
to look after their interests in the said island. That the said John Stuart, shortly after
his having been so retained, and before the publishing of the report of the case in the
usval way, procured from the reporter of the Court, and seni to your Memorialists for
their information, a written copy of the report of the said judgment ; that the said copy
of report afforded your Memorialists the first intimation which any of them had received
of the fact—of the existence of the registry of the said Lease, and their holding under it—
not having been brought under the rotice of the Court, in connection with the said case,
and that the said John Prince had relied, in hLis defence, solely upon the bare possession
of upwaras of sixty years ; that the said John Stuart, when he so seut them the said
report, apprised them that the time had paszed, before he had been so retained, to make
an attempt to set aside the said judgment, on the ground of the case having been
defectively presented to the Court, it mmdced any such attempt could have been made, at
any time, with any chance of success, the said judgment having been given on a special
case of facts agreed to by thejr own counsel.

That, when the said special case was g0 agreed upon, the said John Prince was
well aware of the several facts following : Ist. That the said Lease had existed ; 2nd.
Taat it had been registered in the manner which was the lawful, and only possible, one
at that early day; 8rd. Thit cvidence of the said registry existéd in his immediate
neighbowrhood at the time of the stating of the said case ; and, 4th. That Your Excel-
lency’s Memorialists claimed the said lsland under a peaceable and undisputed posses-
sjon, held under the said Lease, for a period of seventy-two years, with the knowledge
of the Government, and not by any meuns, as * squatters,” under a possession taken, in
the first instance, by a mcre intruder ¢ not asserting title.”

14. That Your Memorialists, afier having been so furnished with the report of the
said case, called the attention of the said Jobn Stuart to the said important defect in the
stating of the said special case, and the existence, somewhere in the township of Sandwich,
of the said Notarial Registry Book, containing the Registry of the said Lease, where-
upon the <«aid Jobn Stuart advised the immediate tracing np and securing of the said
book, which was accordingly done, and the same was placed in his hands.

15. That the said Thomas Mclice, and those deriving their title under him, have
enjoyed peaceable and uninterrupied possession of the said island, unquestioned by the
said lessors and their successors; and without complaint of the said Lease having been
unduly obtained, from the said 1st day of May, 1758, to the present time—a period of
apwards of three quarters ol a century—as will appear upon reference to the sa:d
atfidavit of the said Michael Fox, bereinbefore referred to, as also the accompanying
affidavits of William Elliott, William Duff and Roberi Rynolds, Esquires, and of
Madelaine Askin, who was the wife of the late John Askin, Esquire, (all of whom were
amongst 1he most aged and respectable people of that part of the country,) and of
Frederick Fisher, an intelligent Indian, and a man famed for his integrity and probity,
which said five aflidavits, last mentioned, are marked respectively, * H,”? « [,? ¢«« K,»
[43 I_"” and (39 M 2

16. That the occupation of the said i-land, by the McKees and McCormicks, bas
been, from the beginning, with the full knowledge of the Government, as may be shown
by the following, amongsi other facts, viz : »

Ist. The said Thomas McKee was himself deputy agent of Indian Affairs, and
gave netice to the Government of his having obtained the said Lease.

2nd In the year 1812, the Government purchased from the said Thomas McKee,
cedar and other timber, on the said island, for the purposes of the fortifications at Fort
Malden.

3rd. In the year 1833, when it was determined to erect the Light House on the
said Island, permission to do so, as well as the necessary site for the purpose, was first
asked for and obtained, from the said William McCoimick, deceased, then in possession,
by the said William Elliott, who was the senior of the Commissioners appointed to
superintend the erection of the said Light House, and who, having been aware ever
since the year 1802, (when he first came 1o the country,) of the precise nature of the
McKee-McCormick title to the said island, and, being himselt a lawyer, considered
such permission necessary preparatory to breaking ground, (all of which will appear by
the said afiidavit of the said William Elliott, hereinbefore referred to) ; and,
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4th. In the year 1838, the Government again purchased cedar and other timber—
which they well knew to have teen cut on the said island—from the said William
McCormick, deceased, to a large amonnt, for the repairs of Fort Malden aforesaid.

That Your Excellency’s Memorialists respecifully sabmit, that in consequence of
the great lapse of time since the execurion of the said Lease, they could hardly Le
expecled to adduce proof of knowledge, on the part of the Goveinment, during the
earlier period of the existence of the said Lease; of the facts of its having so existed,
and of the occupation of the said island thereunder ; living evidence of sach facts
having had ample time to disappear {rom tlhe stage, as well as bas documentary
evidence to become destroyed, lost and mislaid, in the depaitments of the Government

where it might otherwise have been expeeted to be found. ’

17. That Your Excellency’s Memorialists having learned that it has lately been
urged, on the part of the Indian Department, against the validity of the said Lease,
under which Your Memorialists so claim, that it bad been obtained in violation of
express law, respectfully submit, that they are advised that such objection ix groundless,
inasmuch as no Statute, Imperial or Provinecizl, Proclamation, Ordinance or Order in
Council, prohibiting the acquiring (even by persons, not Indians or half-breeds), by
Deed or Lease, from the Indians, lands within the particular territory, in which the
Island in question is sitnate, was passed or made, until many years afier the execution
of the said Lease, and, in fact, until the passing of the Provincial Act 13 and 14 Vie.,
cap. 74, in 1830, upwards of sixty years after the execution of the said Lease. Your
Excellency’s Memorialists beg 1o submit, with this Memorial, a brief shewing, amongst
other#iings, all the different Acts, Proclamations, and Orders in Council| relating to the
subject, passed and made up to, and including the said last mentioned Act; which said
brief is marked ¢ N.”

18. Your Excellency’s Memorialists would respectfully submit, for Your Excellency’s
consideration, the following circumstances, as, amongst others, further shewing the
justice of their claim to have their titles, to their respective portions of the said island,
under the said Lease and Will, confirmed by Patents {rom the Crown, viz :

1st. That a large tract of territory, extending fourteen miles on both banks of the
< Quse ” or * Grand River,” afier having been oltained by the Crown, by cession, was,
as Your Memorialists are advised, subsequently given to the Six Nations of Indians, ¢n
their arrival in the Province ; that the iate Colonel Josepl Brani, as their principal
chief, and in their name, subsequently se-leased, to the Government, portions of the said
territory, from time to time, as it was needed {or settlement, the proceeds of which, as
sold, having been applied to their use and benefit ; that the said Indiaas, also. in many
instances, gave, in some cases by deed, and, in others, by long leazr, (known as Brant
Deeds and Leases,) portions of the said territery 1o members of the Indian Department,
and others of their friends, which Deeds and Leascs (having been given freely and
voluntarily) were recognized by the Government, and subsequently confirmed by Patents
to such grantees and lessces, und others claiming under them respectively ; that Your
Excellency’s Memorialists would mention, as one instance of the many of such cases,
that of one William Dockstader, whose title to fourteen hundred acres, the Government
confirmed, by issuing Patents to his several nssignees and representatives for their
respective proportions.

2nd. That many parties, holding such Deeds and Leases, then unconfinmed by
Patents, having turned traitors during the war of 1812, the Governmnent took the neces-
sary steps to confiscate their titles, thercby, as Your Memorlalists are advised, fully
recognizing the Brant titles in another mode. Your Excellency’s Memorialists beg
leave to submit the accompanying opinion, on their case, by the Honorable Henvy John
Boulton, an eminent counsel, upon whose veports, when occuping the position of
Attorney General for Upper Canada, Letters Patent were issued for the confirmation of
many Indian titles, held under Braut Deeds and Leases, of lands on the Grand River ;
and who, also, conducted the proceedings for the confiscating of londs, held under such
Deeds and Leases, then unconfitmed by Palents, as the property of traitors daring the
late war with the United States of America ; the said opinion is marked < Q.7

19. Your Excellency’s Memorialists further submit, that according to the best infor-
mation they have been enabled to obtain, the said Thomas McKee, the said lessee, and
his son, Alexander, werc men of inflaence among the Indians of Point-au-Pelée Island
and its neighbourhood, being half breeds and chiefs, as well as officers of the Indian
Department, and were fully as much entitled to the aftectionate regard of those Indians
as was Colonel Brant to that of the Six Nations of Indians.

In this connection, Your Excellency’s Memorialists beg to call your attention to the
accompanying copy of a letter, addressed by the late Major General Sir [saac Brock, to
the late Colonel Proctor, as extracted from the life and correspondence of the former,
edited by Ferdinand O. Tupper, Esquire ; which said extract is marked “ P »
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20. That since 1Le death of William McCormick, feur of his children, devisees in
his will, have died, viz: Charles, on December 18, 1844, a minor, unmarried, and
intestate ; Alexander, on August 24, 1854 ; and John, on Juiy 25, 1836, both leaving
children and both intestate ; Mary, on July 23, 1861, leaving a Will, by which she
devised her estate 1o her executors, Peregrine McCormick and Arthur McCormick, and
to her exccutrix, Elizabeth McCormick, in trust to pay off certain legacies, and to divide
the residue amongst her surviving brothers and sisiers, and directing a share equal 1o
:LIh'it of each of her sirviving brothers to be divided amongst the cliuldren of her brother

ohn.

21. That all the surviving devisecs in the Will of the said late William McCormick,
and their families, as well as that of the said late John McCormick, continue to occupy
the said Island, and all join in this Memorial. That the only parties, having an interest
in the island, who do not join in presenting this Memorial, are the children of the late
Alexander McCormick ; he, having in his lifetime, set up pretentions to a Jarger share of

the 1sland than the othier members of the family were willing to admit, or than he was b
aw entitled to, eclaiming 1he whole of Charles’ share as devolving to himself; the
children now living, Roland Alexander McCorm'ck and Agnes Louisa McCormick,

beipg mi'nors, and under the tutelage of their mother, Mary Burwell McCormick, now
residing in the County of Elgin.

22. That proceedings have been taken, and are now pending in Her Majesty’s
Counrt of Chancery, at Toronto, for a partition of the interests of the several parties,
entitled in any way, to have their 1espective interests or portions assigned and set off 1o
them in scveralty.

23. That, impressced as Your Memonalists are, with the rightfulness and justice of
their claim to the said island, the pos<cssion thereof by them and those under whom
they hold, having been held for so long a period, undisturbed and unquestioned by the
Indians, who were the original possessors, as well as by their descendants, the Indians
ever respecting the Lease they bad =0 passed, as well by not offering to cede or dispose
of the said island by treaties, subsequently made with the Government, or otherwise, as

y recognizing the rights of those claiming under the said Lease, by cheerfully paying
or the privilege of trapping thereon, year after year. Your Excellency’s Memorialists,
nevertheless, desire to held their landx under Patent from the Crown, in order that
they may the more fully reap the benelits thereof, by being cnabled to raise the necessary
means of improving the same, and to be placed under the operation of the municipal
institutions of Upper Canada.

And they venture to assert that they are deserving of the favourable consideration of
the Government, in this their expeciation, to be guaranteed and protected in their
Lolding, not merely from the fact of their deriving their title from the original possessors,
but i1 right of their father, who, in early times, and under difficulties and hardships,
subject to great inconveniences and privations, settled with his family upon the island,
an exile from society, and, with much toil, strived to achieve the maintenance of his
family, and to leave his childien each in the possession of a homestead. If, at this day,
foreiyners are invited to the country, and offered lands free, in order to accomplish the
settieruent of our wilds, shall not the children of our early pioneers be permitted to
receive the reward of their ancestor’s toil and endurance and of their own ?

Always unhesitatingly loyal to the British Government, and ever true to its interests,
Your Memorialists feel that they can appeal with confidence to the guardianship and
protection of the Representative of their Sovereign.

Your Excellency’s Memorialists therefore humbly pray that Your Excellency
will be pleased to take their case into your attentive and favourable
consideration, and cause an Order in Council 1o be passed, providing ~
for the waiving of the said judgment, so obtained against the said
Mary McCormick and William McCormick, under the peculiar circum-
stances hereinbefore set forth, in order thai Your Excellency’s
Memorialists may no longer continue to be in a worse position than
they were prior to the filing of the said Information, and for the
issuing of Patents of Confirmation, on payment of the fees thereon, to
Your Excellency’s several petitioners, claiming the said Island, for the
respective portions thereof which may be assigned to them in severalty,
as the result of the said proceedings for partition.

And Your Excellency’s Memorialists will, as in duty bound, ever pray.

(Signed,) JOHN STUART,

Attorney for Memorialists.
Quebec, 25th July, 1865.



SYNOPSIS 0F HEHORIAL.

N. B.—The number of the clauses hercunder correspond with those of the Memorial.

Ist. May 1, 1778, The Chiefs and Sachems of the Bands of the Ottawa and
Chippewa Tribes of Indmna, then owning and inbabiting the Island of Point-au-Pelte
lease it, for 999 years, to Thomas NICKE’L (who was a half-breed and a chief,) bis heirs
and assigns. Lecase witnessed by the late Franoois Baby, Esquire, who represented the
County of Essex in several Parliaments.  For copy of Lease, see Synopsis of Exhibits

(A)

2nd. Thomas Mclee, on Execution of Lease, goes into possession, and retains it
until his death, intestate, in March, 1815, when lus only son, Alexander, inherits.

3rd. The Lease, after having been duly envolled, by William Monforton, as a
Notary of the Province of Quebec, is captured frow Mr. 3lckee, with his baggage, on
the otcasion of the retreat of the British Forces after the  Battle of the Thame* ”in
which he had participated. The Notarial Registry Book forthcoming, with Memorial—
it is identified, and its authenticity established—vid. athidavits of John Stuart; Synopsis
of Exhibits (A).  Affidavit of William Elliott ; sce Synopsis of Exhibiis (H) and (H () ),
and the atfidavits of William Monforton, Charles F. Labadie and Charles Baby, accom-
panying the Monforton Registry Book.

4th. May 19, 1790. Upwards of two years afier the execution of the Lease, Colonel
Alexander McKee, the father of Thomas, negotiates a treaty with the Indians, for the
cession of the coaqt off which the I\land licw : Deed of Cession enrolled in one of a
series of three old registry books, (kept before the estublishment of Registry Ollices in
Upper Canada,) of which, that in question, is one. Synopsis of Exhibits (B).

5th. The Islands lying off the coast, so ceded, not included in Deed of Cession ; for
copy of Deed of Cession, see allidavit of J. Stuart.  Synopsis of Exhibits (B).

6th. The Bands of Indians, in whose behalf tlie Lease was executed, have become
extinet.

7th. Tn 1815, William McCormick, senior, settled on the Island, as the tenant of
Alexander McKee. See affidavit of Michael Fox.  Synopsis of Exbibifs (C) and Lirs.
Askin. Synopsis of Exhibits (L). He continued thereon as tenant until 1523, when
he acquired, from Mr. McKee, @ conveyance in fee of the whole Island. For certified
copy of Memorial thercof, registered, see Synopsis ol Exhibits (D). M. McCormick
continues to occupy and improve the Island until his death, on 18th February, 1840.

8th. Directs, by Will, an equal division of the Island among the eleven children,
with certain provisoes and reservations. See Synopsis of | Exhibits (E).

9th. In 1817, the Devisees procure the Island to be surveyed by P. D. Salter, P. L. 8.
For his field notes and copy of map of survey, see Synopsis of Exhibits (F) and (G).

10th. Ale\'mdel having, as the eldest, the agency as to the yet undivided interests
e sarveyor 1o sef off the farms (specifically dev1\ed)

in the [sland 1lew
to suit his indiv esls in_accordance with_the terms of the Will,

excepting so far us that portion of Is]and called « Middle Island ™ is concerned.
¢ called ~— diddle isiand 7 15 cOncerned,

11th. The survey, consequently, never assented 1o by the other devisees, excepting
as to ¢ Middle Island,” and as truly determining the area of the Island and its marshes
respectively.

[t found the Island to contain 11,649 acres, and that, of that there are 5,413
acres of marsh ; this marsh, in consequence of ils low level, is utterly irreclaimable ;
and about 2,000, of the residue, of the 6,236 acres, are liable to be overflowed during
anything like a hwh stage of water ; ; and further, there are at least 500, of the remaining
4,300 acres on bed 1ocl\—sllcrhtly covered with soil—which is also unfit for purposes of
ullaoe, there, thus, being less than 4,000 acres of the whole area of the Island available,

at all times, as arable land,
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P2the Ino 1859, sume ol the MeCormick family, finding capitalists, with whom they
had been negotiating for loans on the security of their interests in the island, unwilling
to make advances on property, for which no Patent had ever issued, are induced, by
their connsel, to allow him to procare an amicable action 1o be br(mght against them at
the suit of the Crown, in respeet of their posses<ion of the Island, in the hope that a
judoment thereon in their favor (and as to their obtaining which, they were led by their
counsel to believe that no doubt existed,) must result in the Government consenting at
once to issue the necessary Patent for the confirmation of their titles,

An information for Intrwsion is, accordingly, filed in the Queen’s Bench, against
?zmry McConnick and Williran MeCormick, (two of the Memorialists,) and, in aster
Term of the yenr 1339, judgiment is, to the great disinny of the MLmorif—llicls, rendered
against the defendants ; the reason for such mdfrm“nt, proving to be that, in the stating
of the zpecial case, which was agreed upon by counsel, for the opinion of the Court, the
Indian Lease, and the defenq anlx holding under it, were wholly ignored, (their (oun‘:el.
thus depending apon 1ho long po=sexsion, as b.m.n*r the Crown’s right o recover,) and
thus leaving it to be inferred, as the Coart did, in fact, infer, that ¢ the defendants’
¢ possession had been a mere continued one laken in the ﬁ?"st instance by a mere
¢ intruder not asserting title.”

Extracts here follow {rom the judgment of the Jate Sir John Beverly Robinson,
Baronet, favorable, in many points, to the McCormick title, even upon the erroneously and
defectively stated case before him.

13th. The McCormicks kept in ignorance of the grounds on which the judgment
had been rendered adversely, until too late to mnke an attempt to procure its reversal
according to the practice of the Court; they had, in the first instance, advised their
counsel of the fact of the cxistence of the Notarial Rvoi\Uy Book, comamlno the enrol-
ment of the Indian l.ease, under which they held.

14th. Giving up ali hope of getting from their connsel the required information, as to
the grounds of the adverse Judcment lhey employ new counsel, and who, after procuring
from the reporter of the Court, a written copy of the judgment, (before the publication of
tbe printed report in the usual course,) gave them the information ; they, thereupon,
inform him of the existence of the Notarial Registry Book in question, containing the
Indian Lease, whercupon he advises their losing no time in tracing up and getting
possession of it, which is done accordingly.

15th. The Island held, under the Lease, from May 1, 1788, vntil the present time,
unquestioned and withont complaint, from lessors or their successors, depositions of
several of the most rvespocinble and aged people in the nelohbomhood shew this,
(Synopsis of Exhibits (H) to (L) ) both inclusive ; and depocmon of Frederick Flsher,
an intelligent jndian, famed for his integrity, (Synopsis of Exhibits (M). )

161h. The Government had knowledge of the elaim to the Island on the part of the
McKees and McCormicks from the first.

17th. The acquiring, from the Indians, on 1=t Mav, 1788, of the Lease, by McKee,
{even if he had not been a half-breed, as he in fact was ) contended not to have been in
contravention of any then existing law, either Imperial or Provineial, (all the Acts and
Proclamations ever passed and issued on the subject of the acquisition of lands from
Indians, recited in a brietf prepared for the purpose, (Synopsis of Exhibits (N). )

18th. The contirmation by the Government, from time to time, of Brant Deeds and
Leases of Indian Lands on the Grand River, as also the confiscation of lands, as the
propertie= of traitors, held under such Deeds and Leascs, unconfirmed by Patent, (the
latter as recognizing on the part of the Government such Indian titles in another mode,)
cited as precedents for the granting of the prayer of the Memorial in question. See
opinion of the Honble. Henry John Boulton on the McCormick title, (Synopsis of
Exbibits (0). )

19th. Colonel McKee's influence with the Indians of the West, deservedly equal to
that of Colonel Brant with the Six Nations, asraccounting for the giving of the Lease,
and its always having been respected, vid. extract [rom the life of Major General Sir
Isaac Brock ; Qynopxlb of Exhibits (P). ‘

20th. Since the death of William McCormick, senior, four of his devisees have
died ; three of them intestate and the fourth leaving a Will.

21st. All the surviving devisees, and their families, as also that of the late John
McCormick, continue to reside on the Island, and all of them j Jom in the Memorlal _the
an interest in the

the late ATexander McCormick, who, in his lifetime clalmed more of the Island than
the other members of the family considered him entitled to.
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of the several partics interested, to be set off to them in severalty.
23rd. Grounds for a reasonable consideration, by His Excellency in Couneil, of the
prayer of the Memorial, stated.

22nd. Proceedings have been institated in Chancery, for a partition of the interests,

24th. The prayer of the Memorial is, that the Government will, firstly—waive the
judgment obtained under the very peculiar circumstances set forth in the Memorial ;
and, secondly—that they will confirm, by Patents, the tenure of all those to whom,
respectively, shares, or portions of shares, in the Island may be assigned, in severalty,
by the suit for partition now so pending.

SYNOPSIS OF EXHIBITS
Accompayning the Memorial of the McCormick family for Patents of
Confirmation of their Title to Point-au-Pelée Island.

(N. B.—The numbers of clauses are those, respectively, of the Memorial.)

ExmisiT (A.)

Clause No. 1.—Copy of Indian Lease to Thomas McKee, dated 1st May, 1788, of
the Island, for a term of 999 years, (renewable,) for a yearly rent of three bushels of
corn, or its value if dernanded—(a true copy of Lease follows this Synopsis).

Exureir (B.)
Clauses Nos. 4 and 5.—The afidavit of John Stuart, states—

That there are in the Registry Office of the County of Essex, two old Registry Books
purporting to have been commenced in Detroit on or about the 16th day of April, 1768,
by one P. Dcjean, styling himself ¢ Notaire Royal,”” and to have been finished on or
about the 21st May, 1800, at Sandwich, by William Roe, styling himself ¢ Deputy
Provincial Register, Western District, U. C.”

That there is entered in the second, of the said two books, a memorandum, of which
the following is a copy: * This Register was sent down to Quebec, by Order of the
“ Commander in Chief, in the year 1784, where it remained until the year 1789, when
it was brought up from thence by William Dummer Powell, Esq., first Judge of His
¢« Majesty’s Court of Common Pleas for the District of Hesse, and afterwards deposited
“in my Office, in the year 1790, in the month of May—and it is now continued ;
“ During the interval the Records of the District were i<n the hands of WiLLiam
“ MonrorTon, who acted as Notary Public, to which reference must be had.

¢ (Signed,) T. SMITH, C. C. Pleas. District of Hesse.
¢« 24th of May, 1790.”

That the said John Stuart, having been retained by the McCormick family, to look
after their interests with respect to Point-au-Pelée Island, after the rendering of the
judgment against them, in favor of the Crown, and having learned that a Register Book
of the above named William Monforton, containing the enrollment of the Indian Lease
of the Island 1o Thomas McKee, Esquire, was in the hands of his descendants in the
Township of Sandwich, caused the said book to be traced and discovered, and
which book is now in his hands, and which contains the enrollment of the said Lease, a
copy of which enrollment is annexed to the said affidavit, and which said book is fully
identified, as that referred to in the above memorandum of Thomas Smith, by the
affidavits of William Monforton and Charles Labadie, annexed to the said book, and of
Charles Baby, Esquire, Barrister and Attorney, and Clerk of the Peace of the said
County of Essex ; that the said book contains five hundred and forty pages, (as num-
bered,) and appears to cover the period between the 10th day of May, 1786, and the 23rd
day of September, 1792 ;
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That the second of the said Registry Books deposited in the Register Office of
Essex, contains the enrollment of the Deed of Cession {rom the Indians, of the coast,
opposite a portion of which the said Island is situate, (a true copy of which said Deed,
dated 19th May, 1790, is annexed to the said atfidavit) the said Deed of Cession not
including the said [sland ;

That the said Deed of Cession is the first instrument enro:led in the said last men-
tioned book, after i s return from Quebec, as mentioned in the said certificate of the said
Thomas Smith ;

That there appear to be several registrics in the last mentioned book, made by the
said William Monforton, as a Notary Public, as well before the said book was =ent to
Quebec, as after its return thence, and evidently in the same hand-writing as that in
which his own Registry Book appears to have been exclusively kept.

Exuizir (B. (@)

Clauses 4 and 5.—Copy of sufficient of the description of the premises in the Deed
of Cession of 19th May, 1790, to shew that it does not include the island of Point-au-
Pelée :

“ A certain tract of land beginning at the month of Catfish Creek, commonly called
¢ ¢ Riviére au Chaudiére,” on the north side of Lake Erie, being the western extremily
“of a tract puchased by his said Majesty from the Mississagas Indians, in the year
“ 1784, and from thence running westward arone THE BorDER or Laxe Erig, and up
¢ the straits to the mouth of the river known by the name of * Chenail Ecarté.” ”

N. B.—None of the Islands off the coast ceded by this Decd, are referred to in if,
excepting ¢ Bois Blanc” Island, (as having near its head a'small ¢ run” at which
commences a description of one of the reservations in the Deed ; and the ¢ Petite Isle
au Dinde,” as having above its head ¢ the beginning of the French settlement,” to
which the said reservation extends.)

Exmisir ‘C.)

Clause 7.—Affidavit of Michael Fox, of Ambhersiburg, Esquire, made 9th May,
1859, states—

That he was, then, in the eightieth year of his age ; that he resided in the Town-
ship of Gosfield, immediately opposite the Island of Point-au-Pélée, and at a distance of
some twelve or fourteen miles from it, from 1795 to 1841 ;

That he well knew Thomas McKee and his father, and his son Alexander, as also
John Askin, Esquire, who belonged to the Indian Department ;

That he was aware, prior to the year 1804, that Thomas McKee had, some years
previously, obtained from the Indians, either a Deed or a long Lease, of the said Island ;
and also that the said John Askin was, for some years, in possession thereof, under a
Lease from Thomas McKee, and that he, during that time, kept a large quantity
of stock on it, and as early as the year 1804 or 1805 ;

__That he recollects the circumstance of two persons named Justus Allen and Robert
Little, respectively, occupying portions of the Island as tenants under John Askin ;

That he is aware that shortly after the declaration of the peace of 1815, William
McCormick removed to the Island, and, after having occupied the same for some years,
as the tenant of Alexander McKee, (the son of Thomas,) purchased it from him ; and
that, although he resided within fourteen miles of the Island, and visited it occasionally
for a period of about forty-five years, he never heard of any complaints having been
made on the part of t: e Indians of the occupation of the Island by the said McKees,
John Askin or William McCormick, or any person holding under either of them.

Exnreir (D.)
Clause 7.—Certified copy of Registry of Memorial of Deed from McKee to
McCormick, of the Island—dated 5th September, 1823.
Exnreir (E.)

Clause 8.—Certified copy of the Registry of Memorial of Will of Wm. McCormick,
dated 30th July, 1839 ; whereby he devised—

Ist. To Mary, his wife, a life interest in the Homestead farm, and in two hundred
acres of wood-land adjoining ; and also devised to her the rents and profits of three other
farms, specified, for the support and education of the younger branches of his family
during their minority ;
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2nd. He devised to each of his sons, Alexander, John, David and William, a farm,
particularly specified ;

3rd. To his daughter Lucinda, and his sons Charles and Peregrine, (all of whom
were then under age,) each one of the farms, the rents and profits of which were to be
applied towards their support and education during their minority ;

4th. To hiz daughters Mary and Sarah Ann, he devised the tract known as ¢ Middle
[sland,” which is within the said Island of Point au-Pelée ;

5th. To his son Arthur he devised the «“ Home Farm * at his mother’s death.

(i he will contains a proviso that each of the said eleven portions devised in fee
should be made equal to 300 acres of tillable land.)

6th. To his sister, Elizabeih, he devises the ¢ Butler Farm ”” and * Conklin Farm,”
or the rents and protits therefrom during her nataral life.

7th. He devised the profits of all stone, cedar, timber, village plot, church and
school lot, and hunting and fishing privileges, to be equally divided among his above
named children.

8th. He devisesone hunired acres of land, on the Island, not otherwise disposed of,
the rents and profits of which were to be applied for the use and support of a school for
the benefit of 1he Island.

9th. Lastly he wills and designs that the portions of the said Island, not hereinbefore
appropriated, should be equally divided to his children according to value.

Exuizirs (F. and G.)

Clause 9.—The field notes of the survey of the Island, in 1847, by P. D. Saltee,
shewed the Island to contain 11649 acres, and that there ave 5413 acres thereof marsh;
and map of the said survey.

Exuisrrs (H. and H. @)

Claase 3 and 16.—The affidavits of Wm. Elliott, Esq., made, respectively, 27th
February, and 17th July, 1860, state, amongst other things :

That he was at that time, in the eighty-fifth year of his age; that he came into the
township of Sandwich in 1802; that he was admitted to the bar, and as an attorney of
the courts of Upper Canada, in 1803 ; and that he represented the county of Essex in
Parliament.

That he was intimately acquainted with Thomas McKee, from a period shortly after
his arrival in Sandwich, as well as with his son Alexander, and with William McCor-
mick ; that he knows that Thomas McKee held a 999 year’s Lease from the Indians of
Point Pelée Island ; that he has seen it in his hands, and read it, and never entertained
any doubts of its genuineness and authenticity.

That, after the late war with the United States, Thomas McKee told him that the
lease had been taken from him by the enemy, with his baggage, on the occasion of the
retreat of the British forces alter the battle of the Thames.

That he was well acquainted with William Monforton, the elder, who was a Notary
Public, and who, as such, kept a Notarial Registry under the French Regime.

That, many years after his death, he saw this Registry Book in the hands of some
of his descendants, of the same name, in the township of Sandwich ;

That he had lately seen the identical Registry Book in the hands of John Stuart
(then) of Windsor, in the said county of Essex, Esquire, and that for the better
identifying it as the Registry Book referred to, he had written his name on its first and
last pages.-

That he is aware that Alexander McKee inherited the interest of his father (Thomas)
in the lsland, and that he, in or about the year 1823, conveyed his interest therein to
William McCormick ;

That he never heard of any complaints having been made on the part of the Indians,
of the Lease having been obtained by Thomas McKee in an improper manner, or of the
possession of the Island having been held thereunder by him, or any of those holding
under him, and that he was in the way of hearing of such complaints had they been made ;
That he is aware that the late John Askin, Esq., of Amherstburg, held the Island for a
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term of years under Thomas McKee, and that he sub-let portions of it ; That he is aware
that cedar pickets and other timber were cut on the Island, during the last war with the
United, for the use of the fortifications at Fort Malden, and that Thomas McKee was
paid the value of such timber as standing.

That having been, in the year 1833, appointed one of a Board of Commissioners to
superintend the erection of the light-house on the said Island, and knowing the nature of
the claim of William McCormick thereto, he, as the senior of the Board, applied to the
said William McCormick for the necessary Jand for the purposes of the light-house ; and
that the said William McCormick having consented to give it, they proceeded to stake
out what was considered to be suflicient, with the understanding that the said William
McCormick was to execute a deed of cession thereof to the Crown, after a proper survey
and description thereof should be made ;

That he is aware that the two old Registry Books, before mentioned as being depo-
sited in the Registry Office of the county of Essex, were there so carly as the year 1805,
and that one of them contained the enrollment of the deed of cession, from the Indians to
the Crown, of the territory extending from Catfish creek to the Chenail Ecarté.

Exwuisit (I.)

Clause 16.—The affidavit of William Duff, Esquire, of Amherstburg, made 5th
March, 1860, states—

That he was then in the seventy-ninth year of his age :—That he was well acquainted
with Thomas McKee and his son Alexander, as also with William MeCormick ;

That he was aware that the latc John Askin, Esquire, who belonged to the Indian
Department, occupied the [sland of Point-au-Pelée, for many years, and as early as the
year 1804, under Thomas McKee, who, he then understood, held the Island under a long
Lease frony the Indians, obtained many years previously; that, as long as he could
recollect, Thomas McKee, and those holding under him, enjoyed uninterrupted and
pedceable possession of the Island up to the time of the making of his afhdavit, so far as
the Indians were concerned ; and also so far as the Government were concerned, until
within the last two years.

That he has, ever since the year 1804, resided within about 30 miles of the said
Island and becn in the way of secing the Indians in passing and re-passing ; and that
he has never heard of any complaints having been made by them of the said Lease
having been obtained in an improper manner, or of the occupation of the Island there-
under, and that he thinks that, had any such complaints been made, he must have heard
them.

Exmir (K.)

Clause 16.—The affidavit of Robert Reynolds, Esquire, of Malden, (of the same
agé as Mr. Duff)) made on same 5th March, is precisely similar to the affidavit of M.
Duff, excepting that he states that his knowledge with respect 1o the Island extends
back to 1807, instead of 1804.
Examir (L.)

Clause 16.—The affidavit of Madelaine Askin, of Amherstburg, made 29th Novem-
ber, 1859, states—

That she is the widow of the late John Askin, Esquire, who belonged to the
Indian Department for many years ;

That she was, in 1859, in the eighty-fourth year of her age : That she recollects the
circumstance of her husband having, in the year 1804, stocked and occupied the Island
of Point-au-Pelée for several years under Thomas McKee, who, she always understood,
owned the Island, and whom she knew very well. That ever since the year 1804,
excepting the period from 1807 to 1817, she resided in Amherstburg—about 30 miles
from the said island—and that she never heard of any complaint having been made, by,
or on the part of the Indians, of the occupation thereof by the said Thomas McKee or
any of those who have, from time to time, held under him.

Exnierr (M,)

Clause 16.—The affidavit of Frederick Fisher, made 9th April, 1860, before Thomas
Hawlins, Esquire, (who certifies that he is well acquainted with him, that he bears the
character of an honest and upright man, that he understands the English Language well,
and that he is particularly intelligent for a person in his sphere of life,) states—

That he is an Indian, as also a Chief of the Chippewa Nation and a christian;
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That he believes himsell to be upward- of 50 yvears of age. That he was well
acquainted with Thomas McKee, who, he was always told by their people. had obtained
from the Chiefs and Sachems of the Bands, owning the Island of Point-au-Pelée, a
long lease of it ; .

That he was also acquainted with Alexander McKee, who inberited the Island
from Thomas, his father, as also with William McCormick, who, he understood, pur-
chased it from Alexander;

That he has known the island all his life, having lived in the neighbourhood of
Amherstburgh (a distance of about 30 miles from it) ever since the year 1815, and having
for the last nine years, paid the family of the said William McCormick, every year, for
the privilege of trapping thereon;

That he has known a number of other Indians of his nation, who have been in the
habit of paying the said family for the like privilege, as well before, ns during, the time
he has been in the habit of frequenting the island annually for the purpose of trapping ;

That he has never heard of any objectionx being made, on the part of any of the
Indians, to pay the occupants of thie island for the privilege of trapping thereon ; nor
even heard of any complaints having been made by their forefathers or their descendants,
of Thomas McKee having obtained the island in an improper manner, or of its having
been occupied by hiin, or any of those holding under him, it having been considered by
them (tbe Indians) that they, the occupants, were its vightful owners.

Exaipir (N.)

Clause 18.—Brief shewing all the Acts—Imperial and Provincial—and Proclama-
tions which were in force, at the date of the Indian Lease, as well as all those subse-
quently passed and issned with reference to the acquiring of lands from the Indians by
subjects, proving that the obtaining of the Lease in question was not in contravention of
any such Act or Proclamation.  (For copy of Brief vide Infra.)

Exsieir (0.)

Clauses 19 & 20.—Opinion of the Honorable Henry John Boulton, on the McKee—
McCormick title, citing the fact of the Government’s confirming by Patent Brant Deeds
and Leases, and confiscating the tenure of traitors (during the war of 1812, &c.,) of lands
held under other such Deeds and Leases (not ewsdessad by 'atenis), as precedents for.
granting the prayer of the memorial of the McCormick family, as to Point-au-Pelée
Island. (For copy of Opinion vide Infra.)

Exwuieir (P.)

Clause 20.—An extract, from the life and correspondence of Major General Sir
Isaac Brock, of a letter addressed by him to Colonel Proctor, us shewing the great
regard in whiclh Colonel McKee was held by the Indians from which, amongst other
things, it is urged that the Indian Lease should be respected. (vide Infra.)

APPENDIX.
Exnierr (A.)

(Copy of Indian Lease (renewable) as Enrolled.)

This Indenture made and made between the Chiefs and Sachems of the Chippewa and
Oitawa Nations of Indians, on ‘he one part; and Thomas McKee, of Detroit, of the other
part. Witnessed that the said Chiefs and Sachems oi the Chippewa and Otlawa Nations,
for and in consideration of the rent and covenant hereinafter mentioned and contained,
which on the part and behalf of the said Thomas McKee, his heirs, executors, adminis-
trators, are and ought to be paid and performed, bhath demised, and to farm letten
granted, and by these presents do demise, grant, and to farm let unto the said Thomas
McKee, his heirs, executors, administrators or assigns, all that Island known by the
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name of Point Pelée Island, near Point Pelée in the Lake Erie : Tu have and to hold
the said Islund, and all and singular other the premises, and every part and parcel
thereof, unto the said Thomas McKee, his executors, administrators or assigns, for and
during the term of nine hundred and ninety-nine years, and fully 10 be complete and
ended. To parcel oat the said Island into such lots or parcels as he may think proper,
and tenant the same with whiisocver and whomsoever they please to put thereon.
Yielding and paying therefor, yearly and every year, during the xu1d tern, unto the said
Chiefs and Saclhiems of the Chippewa and Ottawa Nations their heirs and assigns, threc
bushels of Indian corn, or the value thereof] it demanded, annually, 10 and for the use
of the said Chiets and Sachems, their nations, heirs and assigns, for and n full satisfac-

their nations, heirs or axsigns, do hereby covenant, that the said Thomas McKee’s heirs,
executors, administrators or assigus may demise, grant or sell any part or parcel of the
said Island, for the term herein specified.

In witness whereof, &c., at Detroit, the first day of May, in the year, &c., 1788.
b 3 7 v M 3
Executed by Seven Chiefs nnd Sacheins, who attach thelr Potems.
Signed, sealed and delivered

shed, .
in presence of

JAMES ALLAXN,

(Signed,) F BABY.

APPENDIX (N.)

BRIEF OF CANE
In the matter of the claim of the McCormick Family to Point-au-Pelée
Island, in Lake Erie.

This is a petition preferred by the members of the McCourmnick family, setting forth
their title to Point-au-Pelée Island, and praying to be enabled to Lold the portions of the
Island belonging to them respectively, under their father’s will, in fee-simple, and by
patents {rom the Crown, and to be brought under the Municipal Institutions Act of
Upper Canada.

Tt is set forth in the petition, that, in the year 1859, the Crown recovered judgment
against the members of the family, on an information for intrusion, filed in the Court of
Queen’s Bench, at the instance of the petitioners; the object they had in view in
procuring the information to be filed having been to quiet their title. That their case
was erroneously and defectively stated for the opinion of the couri.  And they now ask
the Government to waive the judgment which was so allowed to be obtained against
the parties made defendants in the snit agreed upon, and, upon the consideration of their
case, to eflectnate their requests.

I—First. Axto thetitle of the McCormick family to Point-au-Pelée Island :—

The title of the family 1o the possession of the Island, rests upon un Indian lease for
nine hundred and ninety-nine (999) years, bearing date Ist May, A.D. 17388, and granted
by chiefs and sachems of the Chippewa and Ottawa nations of Indians to Thomas McKee,
Esquire, a chief and half-breed, and also a Deputy Agent for Indian affairs in the West;
and continnous peaceable possession thereunder from that day to the present.

This Lease appears to have been duly executed, and to have been registered in the
way, and according to the form in use,at that early day, in the Territory of Detroit—which
comprised in it what is now the county of Kssex—namely, in the book for enrolling deeds
and other instruments, kept by Notary Monforton, and in fact in the very same series of
books in which the Crown itself registered its own Deed of Cession from the Indians of
the adjacent coast taken two years after the date of the lease in question.

The Lease is shewn to have been genuine and authentic ; and unless, at the time it
was taken, there was an existing law rendering it invalid and void, ab initio, the peti-
tioners must be held to have acquired a right {or the residue of the term cited by it.
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The objection which is said to be taken to it, by the Depaly Superintendent of
Indian Affairs, Mr. Spragge, in his Report, is, in eflect, that it was not competent for
Thomas McKee to take a1 lease {rom the Indians, becanse, he savs, there was a Procla-
mation issued by Sir Willinm Johnson, on 1ith October, 1763, promulgiing the King’s
proclamation of 1st May, 1763, forbidding subjevis from m thing purchases from Indians
in the territories, without the Royal License, which Thomas Mck e had not.  And that,
again, there was a Proclamation izsued by General Gage, dated Sth of April, 1771, stat-
ing that it was not allownble for subjects 1o acquire lands in the Detroit Territory from
the Indians; he arguing, therefore, that the lease in question is defective and void.

This objection to the Lease may be answered as [ollows:—

The two proclamations cited are, essentially one and the same, both of them merely
promulgating the Imperial Order in Council of George 11, of 1st May, A.D. 1763.

We shall proceed to explain the history, nature and intention of this order, and it
will be apparent that the effect of the Proclamation is not that stated by Mr. Spragge.

It could not, and did not, render it incompetent for the Indians to give a Lease of a
tract of their lands, nor him, Thomas MeKee—Lull-bried as ne was—to {ehe one from
them. And, i he could take and transmit, the tenure of the MeCormick’s should be
regarded as good as are fitles, for such a tenure, held by Families or Corporations, for
Estates in England.

By the Treaty of Paris, after the conquest of Canada, all existing Titles to Lands,
and holdings of property werc confirmed, and the Governinent of Grear Britain regarded
and treated, as owners of the soil, the different Tribes of Indians, in the tracts respect-
ively occupied by them, not already ceded by the French Government.

In order to arrive at the true meaning of the Order, upon which M. Spragge’s
objection depends, it may be well to recapitulate events:—
/ Tl

On 18th September, 1’75(?‘, occurred the Capitulation of Quebec ;
On 8th Xay, 1760, followed the Capitalation of Moniveal ;

On 10th February, 1763, was concluded the Treaty of Peare between the Hings of
France and Great Britain, whereby he of France renounced Acadia, Canadi, Cape-
Breton and all its dependencies,—before this cession, by the King of Frunce, was passed,
on ist May, 1763, the Order in Council of George 11, promulgated on I1ih Ociober, 1763,
by Sir William Johnson, aud, afterwards, re-iterated by General Gage on Sth April, 1771,

This Order after reciting that valuable acquisitions had been made by the British
Crown, and that it was desirous that loving subjects shonld avail themselves thereof,
sets forth that Letters Patent had been granted for the erection of four distinet Giovern-
ments—Quebec, Fast Florida, West Florida and Gienada,

It also sets forth the boundaries of the Province of Quebec, which, according to that
description, could nnt have extended westward of a line drawn from Lake Nipissing
1o Lake Champlain, which would pass in the neighbourhvod of Cornwall.

It provides for the Government of the Province, by the appointment of Governors,
with directions to summon Assemblies and ordain Laswx like those of England ;

It provides for Grants of Land to Millitary and Naval Officcrs.

And then follows the clause upon which Mr. Spragze relies, and is here copied in
exlenso, viz :

« And we do further declare it to be our Royal will and Pleasure, for the present
« g4 aforesaid, to reserve under Qur Sovereignty, protection and d.orr‘]ini(m, fpr )he use of
¢ the said Indians, all the Lands and Termitories not included within the limits of Our
« the said three new Governments or within the limits ol the Territory granted to the
« Hudson’s Bay Company. Asalsoall the Lands and Territories lying to the westward
« of the sources of the rivers which fall into the Sea from the west and north-west as

« aforesaid.”
¢« And we do hereby strictly {forbid, om pain of Our displeasure, all Our loving sub-

¢ jects from making any purchases or settlements whatever, or taking possession of any
«’of the lands above reserved, without Our special leave and license for that purpose

« first obtained.”

« And we do further strictly enjoin and require all persons whatever who have
« gither lawfully or inadvertenily seated themselves upon any lands within the countries
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above described, or upon other lands, which, not having been ceded to, or purchased

by us, are still reserved to the said Indians as a'oresaid, forthwith to remove them-
W, 7 k]

selves from such setilements.”

(13

“ And whereas great frauds and abuses have been commitied in purchasing lands
of the Indians, to the great prejudice of our interests, and to the great dissatisfaction
of the said Indians : In order, therefore, to prevent such irregulariiies for the future,
and to the end that the Indians may be convinced of our Justice and determined
resolution, Wz po, with the advice of Gur Privy Counecil, strictly enjoin and require,
that no private per-on do presume o make any purchuse from the said Indians of any
lands rescrved to the said Indians, within those paris of our Colonies where we have
thought proper to allow settlement ; but thut, if ar any time, any of the said Indians
should be induced to dispose of the said lands, the same shall be purchased only for
us, in our name, at some public meeting or assembly of the said Indians, to be held
for that purpose by the Governor or Commander in Chief of our Colony, respectively,
within which they shall be. And in case they shall be within the limits of any
proprietary Government, they shall be purchased only for the use and in the name of
such proprietors, conformable to such directions and insiructions as we or they shall
think proper to give for that purpose.”

- r e~ ~ £~ e~ o~
P N N

~
~

~ ~ ~ £~
o~ n e o~

I.—The evident intention of this Order in Council, of George Ill, was to provide
for the th'n immediate want in 1he new acquisitions. A Government and a temporary
one—until mere matured and settled arrangements could e made ;—Certainly for the
region, then unexplored and unknown, lying between the limit a-signed to the Province
of Guebec, and the supposed liriit of the territory of the Hudson’s Bay Compuny, the
order forbade :

1st. All loving subjeets, “ on pain of displeasure,”’ from making purchases or settle-
ments within this region.

2nd. And, as to the subjects within the limits of the Province, who had * seated
themselves,” it directed them to remove.

3rd. And it provided that the Crown should have all the bargains from the Indians,
when scttlements were permitted by the Crown,

The question ir, whether this order had the effect of rendering null and void the
Lease to 't'homas McKee, made in 1788 ¢

1st. That order had been revoked and annulled and made vuid, from and after iss
May 1775, by the Imperial Act 14+ George I, chap. 83.

This Act, afler assigning new limnits to the Province of Quebec, including in them
what is now called * Upper Canada,” provides, by section 1V, aflter reciting that the
provisions made by said Procl-unation, in respect to the Civil Government of the Province
of Quebee, and the powers and aathorities given to the Governor and other Civil Officers
of the said Province, by the grant and commission issued in conscquence thereof, had
been found to be inapplicable, &e.

“ That the said Proclamaction, so fur as the same relates to the said Province of
« Guebec, and the commission and the authority theveof, under the authority whereof
“ the Goveirnment of the said Province is at present aduiinistered, and all every
« Ordinance und Ordingnces, made by the Governor and Council of Quebec, for the
« {ime being, relative to the Civil Government and Administration of Justice in the said
« Province, and all Commissions to Judges and other Officers thereof, be, and the sume
« gre hereby revoked, annulled and made void, from and after the st duy of May, 1775,

And a Government was, by the said Act, constituted for managing the aflairs of
the Province, consisting of the Governor, for the time being, and a Council of twenty-
three members appointed by warrant of His Majesty.

(For this Imperial Act, See Thompson & McFarlane’s Revised Edition (1831) of the
Statutes of Upper Canada, published at Kingston.)

By a Proclamation of Lord Dorchester, dated 24th July, A. D. 1788, the
Province was divided into the four following new Districts, namely, Lunenburg, Meck-
lenburg, Nassau, and Gaspé. The District of Hesse comprising all the Territory west
of Long Point.

Thus from May 1st, 1775, an end was put to the old regime, and the Proclamation,
relied upon, became dead; and it is, consequently, only in the Legislation, subsequent
to that date —first of the Province of Quebec, and second of the Province of Upper
Canada—that we have to look for enactments making dealings with Indians illegal.
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2nd. Bat, even if this Proclamation had not been thus formally ubrogated and deter-
mined previous to the granting of the Indian Lease to Thomas McKee, it should
not, and could not, be held to render the lease void at this day.

(i.) Because it is obsolete and worn out, and wholly inapplicable to the condition of
things now, and was so even in 1788—

(ii.) Because, even in its freshness, it did not accomplish the making null ¢nd void an
agreement properly and formally made by Indians for Lands.

@.) It did not so provide by its words. It says: ¢ We {orbid on pain of our
. p y us Y n p
displeasure.” The effect of such expression would be, po=sibly, to render
the offender liable tor a misdemeanor, or subject to the punishment of
snmmary eviction.

(b.) The evident intention of the Proclamation was for the summary and imme-
diate enforcement in this manner, the Government of the day being more,
of an arbitrary, than judicial character.

(¢.) Tt would require an Act of Parliament to make an agreement ““nudun
pactum.”

(d.) The Proclamation provided, under its second head, ‘ no one shall purchase,
without leave, in settlements.” If the case of the McCormicks come under
this head, leave must be presumed, becausc, in 1755 the Indians in posscs-
sion of the Island leased it to Thomas McKee, and two years afterwards,
in 1790, the Government treated with the Indians for the main shore oppo-
site ; and it ix a fair presumption that the Govermment then were informed
of the case, and they did not then repudiate it, nor has the Government, to
this day, attempted to treat with the Indians for the Island.

(1il.) The term used in the Proclamalion is ¢ purchase.”

and cannot be held to apply to leases.

It must be interpreted strictly,

(iv.) The original Lessee was a half-breed, and, by law, an Indian, and the Proclama-
tion, while in existence, could not, and should not, be held to prevent him from
occupying and holding Indian lands.

(v.) The Island passed to Alexander McKee, who was also a hulf-breed and an Indian,
and it was not until the year 1823, that he parted with it to William McCormick,
the father of the claimants, when thes laws in force in the Province of Upper
Canada alone were applicable to dealings between Indians and half-breeds onthe
one side and whites on the otler.

(See 13 and 14 Vic., chap. 74, and compare provisions by which, as well per-
sons married to Indians, as the children of an Indian parent, are permitted to hold lands
in Indian Reserves. And see also definition of the word “Indian.”)

3rd. The History of Canada may be divided into the following periods, and the Legisla-
tion, adopted in reference to the Indians, during cach of these periods, was as
follows, and, until 1850, it had nothing in it rendering the taking of leuscs from
Indians illegal.

(i.) Tae periop or MiLiTARY RULE UNDER THE ProcLamation or Grorer III,
3rD YEAR, OITED BY MR. SPRAGGE AND EXTENDING FrROM 1763 TO 1775.

During this period the Proclamation itself simply forbade subjects from purchasing
from Indians in the Territories; ordered them to remove from lands occupied;
and not to purchase without leave.

(ii.) Tue pErIOD OoF THE ConstiTuTION OF QUEBECc—extending from 1775 to 1792,
under a Governor and twenty-three Councillors, appointed by the King and
authorized to pass Ordinances.

During this period an Ordinance was passed—17 George IlI, chap. 7, intituled,
« An Ordinance to prevent selling liquor to Indians, and to deter persons from
buying their clothing and arms, and {for other purposes relative to the trade and
intercourse with the said Indians.”

But this Ordinance enacted nothing against making an agreement with Indians
for lands.

(N. B.—This Ordinance was held to be in force in Upper Canada after its
erection into a Province.)
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(iit.) Tae periop or tHE Constirurion or Upper Cavapy xTENDING FROM 1792
To 1840.

During this period several Acts were passed regulating the dealings with
Indians, but none in prevention of the purchase of lands.

(iv.) THE pERIOD EXTENDING FROM THE UNIoN OF THE ProvINCES, vrRoM 1840 1o 1865.

In 1850 the Act introduced by Mr. Baldwin, 13 & 14 Vie. chap. 74—rendering
agreements with Indians, for lands, invalid, and making it a misdemeanour to
treat with them, and various other regulations, for which see Act itself.

This Act is, of itself, evidence of the prior non-existence of any Rule of Law
against purchasing or leasing lands from I[ndians.

Chapter IX of the Consolidated Statutes of Canada embodies the various
enactments with reference to the Indians.

Il.—As to the Judgment obtained against the McCormicks on the Information
for Intrusion.

Referring to the judgment by the learned late Chief Justice Sir John Beverle

Robinson, in the case—as reported in Vol. 18, of the Queen’s Bench Reports, page

transmiiting to his Son, and by him transferred to William Mc¢Cormick, their father—
the Government never having obtlained the cession of the Island, and the MeCormicks

holding under a title independent and adverse—the decision of the learmmed Chief
Justice could not have been otherwise than the reverse of what it was. And itisevident,
from the remarks of his Lordship, that he felt that the case of the McCormicks had not
been fairly submitted to the Court, by the special case agreed on for the purpose, and by
which their case was made to depend solely upon their undisturbed possession for a
period of upwards of sixty years, as barring the Crown’s right to recover, thus, by
completely ignoring the Indian Lease, not shewing that their * possession had been
“ adverse to the Crown and not permissive, and had not been a mere continued possession
“ taken, in the first instance, by « merc intruder not asserting title,”’—a ¢ squatter ™
in fact.

The important defect, in the statement of the case of the McCormicks, being
apparent, from the very judgment of his Lordship, nothing need be added to induce the
Government to perform the act of justice of waiving the advantagc of the judgment
thus obtained.

1. As to the disposition in which it is hoped the claim of the McCormick family
will be received, and dealt with, by the Government.

The argument, bad under the first head, goes to shew that the McCormicks have a
good paper title to the Island, or a right to it, acquired bond fide. But,in submitting their
case, the McCormicks feel they are not coming to a corporation, investigating their title
as if for a loan, but to the Government, as parens palrie, mindful of the just claims, and
solicitous for the welfare, of all loyal and loving subjects. They conceive that, legally
and righifully, they have acquired the possession and ownership of the Island they
occupy, and, in approaching the Government with their case, (even were it the fact that
either the Lease, under which they hold, or the possession originally conferred by the
Indians and transferred to them, was irregular or deficient in any respect,) the petitioners
would feel confident that the Government of the country never would, under any pre-
tence, attempt to deprive them of holdings undisturbed for upwards of three quarters of
a ceontury. But, on the contrary, that the Government would protect them in their
property, and confirm it to them in the manner most advantageous 1o them.

IV As to the ways and means by which the requests of the Petitioners may best be
effectuated.

The members of the McCormick family, the Petitioners, are ready and willing to
smrender to the Crown their Lease, in order that their respective titles under it may be
confirmed by patents. And it is respectfully asked that the Government will take a sur-
render of the reversionary interest of the Indians, if the bands, who originally owned the
Island, are still in exisience. And if, upon enquiry, it should be found that those bands
are extinet, then that the Government assume the reversionary interest, and, accepting
the surrender of the Lease, issue patents, in the manner prayed for in the petition, to
each member of the family as entitled. ’
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The case is a peculiarone. The tract leased in this instance by Indians to a favorite
chief, is small as compared with other grants made by Indians and subsequently re-
spected and confirmed, and insignificant as compared with the vast territorial grants
made by a sovereign to a few favorites, and which are respected to this day.

In the confirmation of the title to this Island, as asked for, a most loyal and, in every
respect, deserving family, will be served, and the country at large, will be advantaged
by their dividing up their holdings and inviting settlers to their island to further develope
and improve it.

fl

APPENDIX O.

(Opinion of The Honorable Henry John Boulton.)

In Re the McCormick Claim to Point-Pelée Island.

I bave read the Brief and Petition to the Governor General, sent o me for my
perusal and opinion, and, although [ see no objection to the petition, in point of form,
yet I think both the Government Agents, and the Claimants to the Island, urge their
respeclive views rather too much upon the idea of a legal paper title being sought to be
established.

Previous to the Treaty of Quebec the whole of the present Province belonged, in
Sovereignty, to the French King by conquest, but such conquest did not, I apprehend,
vest in the French King the soil of the country, belonging to the Indians, and used by
them as hunting grounds, but, whensoever the Government required lands for Civil pus-
poses, Agricultural or otherwise, the Indians, represented by their Chiefs, treated with
the Government for a cession of so much of the Territory, to be organized for setile-
ments, as the circumstances of the country might require.

The Indians, although occupying and using the country collectively, in a nomadic
state—like all other wandering tribes of uncivilized savages—mnever, individually,
reduced any part of it to personal enjoyment, as separate properly, and never had, in
fact, any individual separate estate or property in the land at all. Thercfore, it was not
in the power of any Indian to iuake a title to any portion of land—as property—to
anybody, and, therefore, when lands were wanted for cultivation the Chiefs or Head-
men of the Tribes (according to Indian usages and the custom of savages everywhere,
whether in America or Africa) met in Council and negotiated, by Treaty, for the cession
of the land needed, which is the course, (I think I may venture to say) uniformly adopted,
on this continent, in dealing with the Indians—whether by the British Government, or
American, or Colonial, or Proprietary Governments—except, perhaps, in some except-
ional cases, where they may have acquired territory, as the price of peace, after having
provoked a war which ended in the subjection of the Tribes engaged. Now the facts,
in this case, as represented in the papers before me, shew that the Indians, on the 19th
of May, 1790, by their Chiefs in Councii, ceded to the Government of the King of
Great Britain, most of the Western Peninsula of Canada, lying along the shores of Lakes
Erie and St. Clair—but not the Islands adjacent—and making, as is well known,
certain rescrvations for their own use, as camping grounds, perhaps, when they should
assemble to transact any business with the Government.

The Grand River Reserve—as it is, ] think, incorrectly called—was, at a very early
date, acquired, in the same way, from the Tribes, and afterwards a sort of License of
occupation (which was neither a Lease nor a Deed purporting 1o grant a Freehold) was
made 10 the Six Nations of Indians, coming in from the Mohawk country, under Joseph
Brant and Sir William Johnson, for their loyalty to the British Crown during the
American Revolution. [But still no individual Indian acquired a legal estate in any
portion of the territory without the intervention of the Crown, for the reasons I have
before given, namely, that individual Indians did not acquire any separate estate, the
whole being set apart for their general use as a hunting-ground. And this land has
been dealt with, by the Indians, throngh their Chiefs, and by the Government, just as if
it had originally been theirs, as the aborigines of the country, for whensoever it has been
thought best to have the Jand organized for settlement and divided into Townships, the
Indian Chiefs (of whom Joseph Brant was, during his life, principal) ceded back to the
Government, such parts as it was thought best for the benefit of the Indians and to
promote the settlement of the country and it was then sold for the benefit of the Indians
in general.

Brant, upon several occasions, gave leases of considerable tracts to his {riends and
leading members of the Indian Department, which, having been done freely and volun-
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tarily, were not opposed by the Government, and have since been patented to the parties
themselves or those claiming under them, whereas, without the recognition of the Govern-
ment, these leases were worthless, constiruting no title whatever; and yet the Govern-
ment itself, when I was Atiorney-General, confiscated large tracts of land held under
Brant Leases being in the hands of aliens who forfeited their estates by treason during
the American War of 1312.

Now the lease of Point-au-Pelée Island stands just in the same position, und | have
no doubt that, if the McCormicks, instead of being loyal subjects to the Crown, had left
the Province and gone to the United States during the war, this Island would have been
forfeited in the same manner. Thomas McKee, to my knowledge, was a man of
influence as a chief and officer of the Indian Departinent, and was as much entitled to
the affectionate regard of the Indians, to whom the Island belonged, as Brant, or any
other leading chiet of the Six Nations, was to theirs; and I am sure that if, at that time,
the Government (who never owned the Island) had attempted to deprive him of it, while
the whole matter was {resh in the minds of all the Indians and inhabitants of that part of
the country, it would have created great disgust in the mind of every one—Indian and
white settler—and the Indians who assented to the lease, would, in all probability, have
resented, in some way, the indignity offered them by the refusal to recognize their act.

The Government, at all events, never had any right to the Island, as it was never
ceded to the Crown by the Indians, und it having been in the possession of the lessee and
his assigns, claiming title to it, for morc than seventy years; | am sure that so unjustifi-
able an act, as the depriving a loyal family of their patrimony, under the pretence that
they have established no legal paper title lo <t, after living upon and improving it for
between 70 and €0 years, has not yet been attempted by any Government dealing
with the Indians at any time.’

It the Crown rests its claim upon the prerogative right of seizing into its own hands
all property for which no owner can be found—as, if an illegitimate son had died without
issue and inteslate, then, in default of heirs, the Crown would take as parens pairie—I
do not think any defence could be set up. In the present case, however, it is clear that,
if the delendants had been properly defended. the Crown would have been defeated under
the provisions of the 9th George Il cap. 16, made expressly to quiet the possession of
the subject: where neither the King, nor those under whom he made title, had either
been in possession, or taken the profits, for 60 years.

In this case the Crown could have made out no such case, as this Island had never
been ceded 1o it, and no others, than the McCoraicks, had any rightful possession under
which the Governmeni could cstablish a claim.

I therefore think that the Government ought, at once, to consent to the sctting aside
the judgment, which, through negligence or ignorance, has been suflered to be obtained
against the two defendanis—although they might as well issue pateots to those entitled
under the Will of the late William McCormick.

I have read the judgment of the late hiel Justice of Upper Canada, Sir John Beverley
Robinson, as reported in 18 U. C. Q. B. Reports, p. 131,—Regina v. McCormicks,—
in which he evidently intimates that it was in consequence of the real facts of the case
not being before the court that be was constrained to give judgment for the Crown, as he
was well aware of the long enjoyment ol the property under the Indian Lease.

Holland House, Toronto, 5th August, 1865.

APPENDIX (P.)
FExiract from ¢ Leller addressed by Major-General Brock to Colonel Proctor.
“Fort George, September 17, 1812.

* * * * * * 3 B3 *

¢ Colonel E—— [Ellioft] is a respectable, gentlemanly man ; but he, by no means, possesse§
the influ>nce over the Indians which Captain McK [Thomzs McKee]| does; I
recomimend 1o you o piomote, as far as in you lies, a good understanding with, and
between them, and observe a conciliating deportment and language towards the latter
that his greut influince may be secured and employed, in its fullest extent, for the benefit
of your district and for the general good. In conversation with him you may take an
opportunity of intimating that I have not been unmindful of the interests of the Indians
in my comrmunications to ministers, and I wish you to learn (as it casually the subject
of conversation) what stipulations they would propose for themselves, or be willing to
accede 1o, in case either of failure or of success.”

#* * * * #* * * * #*

Life and correspondence of Major-General Sir [saac Brock, K.B., by Ferdinand O.
Tupper, Esquire, 2nd Ed., p. 311.
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